
Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
October 16, 2017 

Page 1 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

Monday, October 16, 2017 
3:30 p.m. Tour of Inspection 

4:00 p.m. Open Session   
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:    ERIK DYAR, CHAIR   
      KATHRYN GUALTIERI, VICE CHAIR 
      LYNN MOMBOISSE 
      THOMAS HOOD 
      ALEX HEISINGER 
 
B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
Shortly after 3:30 p.m., the Board will leave City Hall for an on-site Tour of Inspection. The public is 
welcome to follow the Historic Resources Board on its tour of the subject sites. The Board will return 
to City Hall at 4:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible.   
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
D.  APPEARANCES 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the Board may do so now.  
Please state the matter on which you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the Board’s agenda will 
not receive action at this meeting, but may be referred to staff for a future meeting.  Presentations will 
be limited to three minutes, or as established by the Board.  Persons are not required to give their name 
or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state their name in order that the Secretary may identify them.
  
E.   CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Consideration of the minutes of August 21, 2017 Historic Resources Board Meeting. 
 
F.  ITEM 
 
1. MA 17-213  
      Sandra J. Markowski, Property owner  
      NW Cor. Santa Rita & Ocean Ave 
      Block: 66;  Lots: 2, 3 & 4  
      APN: 010-039-007 
 

 Consideration of a recommendation to the City 
Council to approve a Mills Act Contract (MA 17-
213) for an existing historic residence located in 
the Single Family Residential (R-1) Zoning 
District. 

1



Historic Resources Board Meeting - Agenda 
August 21, 2017 

Page 2 

2. DR 17-221/HE 17-268 (Simon)  
CVI Investors, LLC, Property owner  

      NE Cor. Junipero & Ocean Ave 
      Block: 68;  Lots: 5-10  
      APN: 010-094-002 
 

 Consideration of adding the Carmel Village Inn 
to the Historic Inventory and determination of 
consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties for modifications to the Carmel 
Village Inn located in the Residential and 
Limited Commercial (RC) Zoning District. 

 
G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT   

 
 
H. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1.      SB 1069 (ADU Legislation) Impact on Historic Preservation 
2. Discussion of Context Statement Update. 
 
 
I.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
J.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Historic Resources Board regarding any item 
on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning and Building Department 
located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean and 7th Avenues during normal business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Historic Resources Board:  Monday, November 20, 2017 
      
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  The City of 
Carmel-by-the-Sea Telecommunication’s Device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired (TDD) number is 1-
800-735-2929. 
 
The Sunset Center is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to come to the 
podium.  Assisted listening devices are available upon request to the Board Secretary.  If you need 
assistance, please advise the Board Secretary what item you would like to comment on, and the 
microphone will be brought to you. 
 
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Marc E. Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director, for the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, 
DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the 
foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin board, posted at the 
Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln, June 16, 2017. 

Dated this 11th day of October 2017, at the hour of 10:00 a.m. 
 
____________________________________________________ 
Marc Wiener, Community Planning and Building Director 

2



MINUTES 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 

August 21, 2017 
 

City Hall Council Chambers 
East side of Monte Verde Street 

Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Erik Dyar at 4:00 p.m.  

PRESENT:  Erik Dyar, Chair  
Kathryn Gualtieri 
Thomas Hood 
Lynn Momboisse 

 
              ABSENT:  Alex Heisinger 
 
 

 
 STAFF PRESENT: Marc Wiener, Planning Director  

Marnie Waffle, Senior Planner  
Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  
 

B. TOUR OF INSPECTION  
 Tour of Inspections convened at 3:00 p.m.  
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 Members of the audience joined the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
D.  APPEARANCES  

 
N/A 
 

E. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Consideration of the minutes of June 19, 2017 Historic Resources Board Meeting. 
 
Board Member Gualtieri moved to approve the minutes of August 21, 2017 Historic 
Resources Meeting with corrections. Motion seconded by Board Member Momboisse 
and carried the following vote: 4-0-0-1. 
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: GUALTIERI, MOMBOISSE, HOOD & DYAR 
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

3



ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: HEISINGER 
ABSTAIN:         COMMISSIONERS: 
 

G. ITEM 
 

      1. DR 16-477 (Goodhue/Fink) 
       David Fink, Project Applicant  
       Dolores 4 NW of 7th Ave. 
       Block: 75; Lots: 13 
       APN: 010-147-003                 

 Consideration of a Design Review (DR 16-477) 
application to construct a second-story 
addition above an existing one-story building 
located in the Central Commercial (CC) and 
Downtown Conservation (DC) Overlay 
District.   

Marc Wiener, Planning Director presented the staff report.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearing seeing 
 
Speaker #1: Jeffery Fink, Project Architect provided property history, summarized the 
design, material selections and answered questions from the Historic Resources Board.  
 
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing. 
 
The Board held discussion. Board Members Gualtieri and Momboisse expressed 
reservations with the proposed concrete material and with the contemporary design of 
the building in the Downtown Conservation Overlay District. Board Member Hood noted 
the opportunity to differentiate the building. Chair Dyar concluded the Board discussion 
and voiced support of the proposed materials. The Board provided the direction for the 
applicant to simplify the trellis and redesign the windows on the north elevation.   
 
Board Member Hood motioned to Issue a Determination of Consistency for DR 16-477 
(Goodhue/Fink) with established Downtown Conservation District Design Context 
with the recommendations; to revise the windows on the north elevation, explore 
matching the color of the lower and upper trellises and ensure the front elevation 
trellis is consistent with the contemporary design of the building. Motion seconded by 
Board Member Gualtieri and carried by the following roll call vote: 4-0-0-1. 
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: MOMBOISSE, GUALTIERI, HOOD & DYAR  
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: NONE  
ABSTAIN:         COMMISSIONERS: HEISINGER 
 

4



      2. MA 17-213 (Markowski)  
       Sandra J. Markowski, Property Owner  
       NW corner of Santa Rita & Ocean Ave. 
       Block: 66; Lots: 2, 3 & 4 
       APN: 010-154-011                 

 Consideration of a Resolution to add a 
historic resource to the Carmel Register and 
consideration of a recommendation to the 
City Council to approve a Mills Act Contract 
(MA 17-213) for an existing historic residence 
located in the Single Family Residential (R-1) 
Zoning District.   

Board Member Momboisse recused herself from MA 17-213 (Markowski).  
 
Marnie Waffle, Senior Planner presented the staff report and noted staff support.  
 
Chair Dyar opened the public hearings.  
 
Speaker #1: Applicant/Owner Ms. Markowski clarified maintenance plans and answered 
questions from the Board.   
 
Chair Dyar closed the public hearing.  
 
The Board held discussion and provided the following maintenance plan 
recommendations:  

• Remove the gutters from the scope of work; 
• Add foundation vents; 
• Add copper flashing  at roof dormers; 
• Add perimeter drain; 
• Add percolation pit; 
• Add replacement of the existing wood deck with a Carmel flagstone terrace; and  
• Add vent to the existing shed. 

 
Board Member Hood moved to add MA 17-213 (Markowski) to the City’s Historic 
Inventory with the recommendation the City Council approves the Mills Act Contract 
and provided additional maintenance plan revisions. The motion was seconded by 
Board Member Gualtieri and carried by the following roll call vote: 3-0-1-1. 
 
AYES:                COMMISSIONERS: HOOD, GUALTIERI & DYAR  
NOES:               COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT:           COMMISSIONERS: HEISINGER  
ABSTAIN:         COMMISSIONERS: MOMBOISSE  
 

G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Planning Director, Mr. Wiener discussed the meeting with the Historic Context subcommittee 
and noted the opportunity to update the Historic Context Statement. Mr. Wiener provided the 
Historic Resources Board with a draft version of the Request for Proposals (RFP) to allow the 

5



Board to review and provide comments. Mr. Wiener informed the Board of upcoming Board 
training opportunities and provided an ADU Ordinance update.  

 
H. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Discussion of Context Statement update.   
The Board held a brief discussion.  

 
I.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 

N/A 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned 
at 5:37 p.m. 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Cortina Whitmore, Historic Resources Board Secretary  
 

 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 _____________________________________________ 
 Erik Dyar, Chair 
 

6



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 

Historic Resources Board 
 

October 16, 2017 
 
To: Chair Erik Dyar and Board Members 
 
From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Submitted by: Marnie R. Waffle, Senior Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of a recommendation to the City Council to approve a Mills 

Act Contract (MA 17-213) for an existing historic residence located in the 
Single Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District 

 
 
Application: MA 17-213 APN: 010-039-007 
Block: 66   Lots: 2, 3, 4 (S/PTS) 
Location: NW Santa Rita St & Ocean Ave  Property Owner: Sandra J. Markowski 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Recommend City Council approval of a Mills Act Contract. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The project site is located on the Northwest corner of Santa Rita Street and Ocean Avenue in 
the R-1 Single-Family Residential zoning district. The existing residence is known as ‘Doll’s 
House’. The cottage is approximately 1,150 square feet and is located on a 2,600 square foot 
lot. The primary entry to the residence faces Ocean Avenue. The residence was constructed in 
1928 by designer/builder Hugh Comstock for eastern investor W.O. Swain. 
 
At the August 21, 2017 Historic Resources Board meeting, the Board adopted a Resolution 
adding the property to the Carmel Register of Historic Resources and recommended City 
Council approval of a Mills Act contract subject to the following maintenance plan revisions:  
 

1) Remove the gutters from the scope of work; 
2) Add foundation vent(s); 
3) Add copper flashing at roof dormers; 
4) Add perimeter drain; 
5) Add percolation pit; 
6) Add replacement of the existing wood deck with a Carmel flagstone terrace; and 
7) Add vent to existing wood shed. 

 

7



MA 17-213 (Markowski) 
October 16, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
The applicant has submitted a revised maintenance plan along with an explanation of changes 
(Attachments A and B). Upon further review of the condition of the property, the applicant is 
requesting that the Historic Resources Board reconsider some of the recommended revisions.   
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
The revised scope of work includes, removal of the previously proposed gutters; adding copper 
flashing in conjunction with replacing the roof; grading and adding a site drain, as needed; and, 
replacing the wood deck with landscaping. The previously proposed foundation repairs have 
been removed from the scope of work (Attachment A). 
 
The applicant is requesting reconsideration of the following items: 
 
Foundation Vents: Upon further inspection of the property, the applicant identified eight, 
existing foundation vents which is felt to be adequate by the applicant’s contractor 
(Attachment B, Photos 1-8). 
 
Percolation Pit: Upon further inspection of the property, an existing 8-inch storm drain covering 
a 3-inch functioning drain pipe was discovered on the east side of the property; a portion of the 
existing flagstone patio drains to this pipe while the remainder of the patio drains away from 
the house and toward an existing landscape area (Attachment B, Photos 9-14). The applicant 
feels that a percolation pit is not necessary but that additional grading and site drains would be 
added as needed. 
 
Replace Wood Deck: The existing wood deck is proposed to be replaced with landscaping rather 
than a flagstone patio to avoid adverse impacts to the root systems of existing trees in the 
vicinity. 
 
Wood Shed Vent: Upon further evaluation of the existing wood shed it was noted that the shed 
does not share a common wall with the main residence and therefore adding a vent to the shed 
is not necessary (Attachment B, Photo 15). 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

• Attachment A – Revised Maintenance Plan 
• Attachment B – Photographs of existing conditions 
• Attachment C – Draft Mills Act Contract 

o Exhibit A – Legal Description 
o Exhibit B – Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 

Properties 

8



9

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



10



11



12

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



  Page 1 of 5 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
 
CITY CLERK 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
 
NAME:  CITY CLERK 
  CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 
ADDRESS: CITY HALL 
  P.O. Box CC 
  CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA, CA 93921 

 
 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
MILLS ACT AGREEMENT 

HISTORIC PROPERTY PRESERVATION CONTRACT 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this __th day of MONTH, 2017 by and between the CITY OF 
CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA a municipal corporation (hereinafter referred to as “City”), and Sandra J. Markowski 
(hereinafter referred to as “Owner”). 
 
RECITALS 

 
(i) California Government Code Section 50280, et seq. (known as the Mills Act) authorizes cities to 

enter into contracts with the owners of qualified historic properties to provide for their appropriate 
use, maintenance and restoration such that these historic properties retain their historic 
characteristics; 

 
(ii) The Owner possesses fee title in and to that certain real property, together with associated 

structures and improvements thereon, located at the southwest corner of San Carlos Street and 12th 
Avenue (APN: 010-164-001), Carmel, California, (hereinafter referred to as the “Historic Property”). 
A legal description of the Historic Property is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit “A” and is 
incorporated herein by this reference; 

 
(iii) The property is identified as an historic resource on the City of Carmel’s Register of Historic 

Resources; 
 
(iv) City and Owner, for their mutual benefit, now desire to enter into this Agreement both to protect 

and preserve the characteristics of historical significance of the Historic Property, and to qualify the 
Historic Property for an assessment of valuation pursuant to the provisions of Article 1.9 
(commencing with section 439) of Chapter 3 of Part 2 of Division 1 of the California Revenue and 
Taxation Code. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, City and Owner, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
herein, do hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM. This Agreement shall be effective and commence on 1 January 2017, 

unless otherwise indicated by Monterey County, and shall remain in effect for a term of ten (10) 
years thereafter. 

 

26

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C



  Page 2 of 5 

2. AUTOMATIC RENEWAL. Each year, upon the anniversary of the effective date of this Agreement 
(hereinafter referred to as “annual renewal date”), one (1) year shall be added automatically to the 
term of this Agreement, unless timely notice of nonrenewal is given as provided in paragraph 3 of 
this Agreement. The total length of the contract shall not exceed twenty (20) years.  

 
3. NOTICE OF NONRENEWAL. If City or Owner desires in any year not to renew this Agreement, that 

party shall serve written notice of nonrenewal in advance of the annual renewal date of this 
Agreement as follows: Owner must serve written notice of nonrenewal at least ninety (90) days 
prior to the annual renewal date; City must serve written notice of the nonrenewal at least sixty (60) 
days prior to the annual renewal date. Upon receipt by Owner of a notice of nonrenewal from the 
City, Owner may make a written protest. At any time prior to the annual renewal date, City may 
withdraw its notice of nonrenewal. 

 
4. EFFECT OF NOTICE OF NONRENEWAL. If either City or Owner serves timely notice of nonrenewal in 

any year, and this contract is not renewed, this Agreement shall remain in effect only for the 
remaining nine (9) years from the last annual renewal date. 

 
5. VALUATION OF PROPERTY. During the term of this Agreement, Owner is entitled to seek assessment 

of valuation of the Historic Property pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 3 of Part 2 of Division 1 of 
the California Revenue and Taxation Code. 

 
6. PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY. Owner shall preserve and maintain the characteristics of historical 

significance of the Historic Property. Attached hereto marked as Exhibit “B”, and incorporated 
herein by this reference, is a list of those minimum standards and conditions for maintenance, use 
and preservation of the Historic Property, which shall apply to such property throughout the term of 
this Agreement. The Owner agrees to complete rehabilitation and/or maintenance activities of the 
structure and comply with such conditions as specified in Exhibit “B” including the conditions 
outlined by the City’s Historic Preservation Consultant. Requests for substantial revisions to the 
maintenance and rehabilitation plan shall be reviewed by the Historic Resources Board prior to 
implementation. In addition, Owner shall comply with the terms of the City’s Historic Preservation 
Ordinance (CMC 17.32). Owners shall not be permitted to further impede the view corridor with any 
new structure, such as walls, fences, or shrubbery, so as to prevent the viewing of the Historic 
Property from the public right-of-way. 

 
7. RESTORATION OF PROPERTY. Owner shall, where necessary, restore and rehabilitate the Historic 

Property to conform to the rules and regulations of the Office of Historic Preservation of the State 
Department of Parks and Recreation, U. S. Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation, 
State Historical Building Code, and the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, all as amended.  

 
8. INSPECTIONS. Owner shall allow periodic examinations, with reasonable notice thereof, of the 

interior and exterior of the Historic Property by representatives of the County Assessor, the State 
Department of Parks and Recreation, the State Board of Equalization, the City and other agencies as 
may be necessary to determine Owner’s compliance with the terms and provisions of this 
Agreement. 

 
9. PROVISION OF INFORMATION. Owner shall furnish the City with any and all information requested 

by City, which City deems necessary or advisable to determine compliance with the terms and 
provisions of this Agreement. 

 
10. ANNUAL REPORT. Owner shall submit an annual report at least 90 days prior to each annual renewal 

date to the Department of Planning and Building specifying all work that has been done to maintain 

27



  Page 3 of 5 

and preserve the historic resource over the preceding year in compliance with the approved 
maintenance plan. 

 
11. CANCELLATION. The City has the right to cancel the contract if the historic resource is damaged or 

destroyed by unauthorized additions, alterations or remodeling. The City also has the right to cancel 
this contract if the owners(s) have repeatedly failed to comply with the provisions of paragraph’s # 
6, 7, 8 or 10 of this Agreement after the City has provided reasonable notice of any failure to comply 
with the agreement. Cancellation of a contract by the City consistent with the provisions of this 
paragraph requires a public hearing and, if cancelled, results in the immediate termination of the 
contract and a penalty equal to 12.5 percent of the assessed market value of the property. City’s 
right to cancel this Agreement pursuant to this paragraph shall in no way limit or restrict its rights or 
legal remedies arising from City’s Historic Preservation Ordinance and Municipal Code. 

 
12. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In lieu of and/or in addition to any provisions to cancel this 

Agreement as referenced herein, City may specifically enforce, or enjoin the breach of, the terms of 
this Agreement. 

 
13. WAIVER. City does not waive any claim or default by Owner if City does not enforce or cancel this 

Agreement. All remedies at law or in equity, which are not otherwise provided for this Agreement or 
in City’s regulations governing historic properties are available to City to pursue in the event there is 
a breach of this Agreement. No waiver by City of any breach or default under this Agreement shall 
be deemed to be a waiver of any other subsequent breach thereof or default hereunder. 

 
14. BINDING EFFECT OF AGREEMENT. Owner hereby subjects the Historic Property to the covenants, 

reservations and restrictions set forth in this Agreement. City and Owner hereby declare their 
specific intent that the covenants, reservations, and restrictions as set forth herein shall be deemed 
covenants running with the land and shall pass to and be binding upon Owner’s successors and 
assigns in title or interest to the Historic Property. A successor in interest shall have the same rights 
and obligations under this Agreement as the original owner who executed the Agreement. 

 
Each and every contract, deed or other instrument hereinafter executed, governing or conveying the 
Historic Property, or any portion thereof, shall conclusively be held to have been executed, 
delivered and accepted subject to the covenants, reservations and restrictions expressed in this 
Agreement regardless of whether such covenants, reservations and restrictions are set forth in such 
contract, deed or other instrument. 

 
City and Owner hereby declare their understanding and intent that the burden of the covenants, 
reservations and restrictions set forth herein touch and concern the land in that it restricts 
development of the Historic Property. City and Owner hereby further declare their understanding 
and intent that the benefit of such covenants, reservations and restrictions touch and concern the 
land by enhancing and maintaining the cultural and historic characteristics and significance of the 
Historic Property for the benefit of the public and Owner. 

 
15. NOTICE. Any notice required to be given by the terms of this Agreement shall be provided at the 

address of the respective parties as specified below, by personal delivery or United States mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 

 
 City: Carmel-by-the-Sea 
  Community Planning & Building Department 
  P.O. Box CC 
  Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA 93921 
 

28



  Page 4 of 5 

 Owner:  Sandra J. Markowski  
   907 Elm Terrace 
   Newton, N.J. 07860 
  
16. RECORDATION. No later than twenty (20) days after the parties execute and enter into this 

Agreement, the City shall cause this Agreement to be recorded in the Office of the County Recorder 
of the County of Monterey. 

 
17. The Owner or agent of Owner shall provide written notice of this Agreement to the State Office of 

Historic Preservation within six (6) months of the date of this Agreement. 
 
18. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE. This Agreement shall be constructed and governed in accordance with 

the laws of the State of California. Should either party to this agreement bring legal action against 
the other, the case shall be handled in Monterey County, California and the party prevailing in such 
action shall be entitled to a reasonable attorney fee which shall be fixed by the judge hearing the 
case and such fee shall be included in the judgment together with all costs.  

 
19. AMENDMENTS. This agreement may be amended in whole or in part, only by a written-recorded 

instrument executed by the parties hereto. 
 
20. DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY; EMINENT DOMAIN; CANCELLATION. If the Historic Property is 

destroyed by earthquake, fire, flood, or other natural disaster such that in the opinion of the City 
Building Official more than sixty percent (60%) of the original fabric of the structure must be 
preplaced, this Agreement shall be cancelled because the historic value of the structure will have 
been destroyed. If the Historic Property is acquired in whole or in part by eminent domain or other 
acquisition by any entity authorized to exercise the power of eminent domain, and the acquisition is 
determined by the City Council to frustrate the purpose of this Agreement, this Agreement shall be 
cancelled. No cancellation fee pursuant to Government Code Section 50286 shall be imposed if the 
Agreement is cancelled pursuant to this paragraph. 

 
21. INDEMNIFICATION. Owner shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless City and its elected officials, 

officers, agents and employees from any actual or alleged claims, demands, causes of action, 
liability, loss, damage, or injury to property or persons, including wrongful death, whether imposed 
by a court of law or by administrative action of any federal, state or local government agency, 
arising out of or incident to the direct or indirect use, operation, or maintenance of the Historic 
Property by Owner or any contractor, subcontractor, employee, agent, lessee, licensee, invitee, or 
any other person; (ii) Owner’s activities in connection with the Historic Property; and (iii) any 
restriction on the use of development of the Historic Property, from application or enforcement of 
the City’s Municipal Code, or from the enforcement of this Agreement. This indemnification 
includes, without limitation, the payment of all penalties, fines, judgments, awards, decrees, 
attorneys’ fees, and related costs or expenses, and the reimbursement of the City, its elected 
officials, employees, and/or agents for all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them. 
Owner’s obligation to indemnify shall survive the termination, cancellation, or expiration of this 
Agreement and shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City, its elected 
officials, employees, or agents. 

 
22. SEVERABILITY. In the event that any of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be 

unenforceable or invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, or by subsequent preemptive 
legislation, the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions, or portions thereof, shall not 
be affected thereby. 

  

29



  Page 5 of 5 

 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the City and Owners have executed this Agreement on the day and year written 
above. 
 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA: 
 
 
By: _______________________   Date: __________________ 
 
Name: Chip Rerig  
Title: City Administrator  
 
 
PROPERTY OWNER(S): 
 
 
By: __________________________   Date: ___________________ 
 
Name: Sharon J. Markowski 

30



31



SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS FOR THE TREATMENT OF 
HISTORIC PROPERTIES 

 
1. “A property shall be used for its historic purpose or be placed in a new use that 

requires minimal change to the defining characteristics of the building and its site 
and environment." 

 
2. "The historic character of a property shall be retained and preserved.  The 

removal of historic materials or alteration of features and spaces that characterize 
a property shall be avoided." 

 
3. "Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use.  

Changes that create a false sense of historical development, such as adding 
conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be 
undertaken."  

 
4. "Most properties change over time; changes that have acquired historic 

significance in their own right shall be retained and preserved."  
 
5. "Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 

craftsmanship that characterize a property shall be preserved." 
 
6. "Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced.  Where the 

severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive feature, the new 
feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, 
where possible, materials.  Replacement of missing features shall be substantiated 
by documentary, physical, and pictorial evidence." 

 
7. "Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to 

historic materials shall not be used.  The surface cleaning of structures, if 
appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible." 

 
8. "Significant archeological resources affected by a project shall be protected and 

preserved.  If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures shall be 
undertaken. 

 
9. "New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy 

historic materials that characterize the property.  The new work shall be 
differentiated from the old and be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and 
architectural features to protect the historic integrity of the property and its 
environment." 

 
10.  "New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in 

such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the 
historic property and its environment would be unimpaired." 

 

32



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
 

Historic Resources Board 
 

October 16, 2017 
 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 
 
From: Marc Wiener, AICP, Community Planning and Building Director 
 
Submitted by: Marnie R. Waffle, Senior Planner 
 
Subject:  Consideration of adding the Carmel Village Inn to the Historic Inventory 

and determination of consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s 
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties for modifications to 
the Carmel Village Inn located in the Residential and Limited Commercial 
(RC) Zoning District 

 
 
Application: DR 17-221/HE 17-268  APN: 010-094-002 
Location: NE Corner of Junipero and Ocean 
Block:  68 Lot(s): 5-10 
Applicant:  Arron Simon Property Owner: CVI Investors, LLC 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The applicant is proposing to make exterior modifications to the Carmel Village Inn hotel 
including, 1) construct a raised, 595 square foot patio along the south elevation of the hotel 
lobby/office and associated parking lot modifications to accommodate the patio; 2) modify the 
existing balcony and stair railings to meet current Building Code requirements; 3) remove an 
existing, interior chimney from the south roof plane and replace it with a fiberglass replica; 4) 
repaint the entire building; 5) replace the roof with wood shake; 6) re-landscape the Ocean 
Avenue project frontage; 7) install a new railing along the 6th Avenue frontage; and, 8) other 
minor exterior modifications at Rooms 1 and 2. The Historic Resources Board (HRB) is being 
asked to consider whether the existing hotel should be added to the City’s Historic Inventory as 
a historic resource and if so, to review the proposed modifications under the Design Review (DR 
17-221) application for consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. Staff recommends that the Carmel Village Inn not be added to the Historic Inventory.  
2. If the HRB chooses to add the Carmel Village Inn to the Historic Inventory, then staff 

recommends that it also issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards for the proposed modifications. 

33



DR 17-221 (CVI Investors, LLC) 
October 16, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 2 of 7 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Carmel Village Inn was constructed in 1954 by James B. Pruitt of Comstock Associates 
utilizing the post-adobe method of construction. The one-and-two story wood framed Inn is 
irregular in plan and rests on a concrete foundation. The exterior wall cladding is post-adobe on 
the ground floor and smooth cement stucco on the second floor with decorative false half-
timbering. The roof is a low-pitched, stepped hipped roof with slightly overhanging eaves with 
exposed rafter tails. The roof overhangs an open balcony that provides access to the second 
floor rooms along the south and west elevations. The balcony railing is made of wood with 
slender balusters. Wood flower boxes are attached to the face of the railing. The Inn has two 
adobe brick chimneys. 
 
On June 19, 2017, the applicant submitted an application for a Track One Design Review to 
make the following exterior modifications to the Carmel Village Inn: 
 

1) Construct a raised, 595 square foot patio along the south elevation of the hotel 
lobby/office and associated parking lot modifications to accommodate the patio;  

2) Modify the existing balcony and stair railings to meet current Building Code 
requirements;  

3) Remove an existing, interior chimney from the south roof plane and replace it with a 
fiberglass replica;  

4) Repaint the entire building;  
5) Replace the roof with wood shake;  
6) Re-landscape the Ocean Avenue project frontage;  
7) Install a new railing along the 6th Avenue frontage; and,  
8) Other minor exterior modifications at Rooms 1 and 2. 

 
The Carmel Municipal Code states that no property shall be altered or remodeled without first 
determining if the property is eligible for inclusion on the Carmel Inventory of historic 
resources. An initial assessment of historic significance was conducted to determine whether 
the property may have historic resource potential sufficient to warrant conducting an intensive 
survey. The initial assessment revealed that the property is over 50 years of age and was 
designed and constructed by Comstock Associates using the Post-Adobe method of 
construction. Based on the initial assessment, an intensive survey of the property was 
conducted by a qualified professional, Mr. Kent Seavy, who is under contract to the City. Mr. 
Seavy completed an intensive survey which is documented on the Department of Parks and 
Recreation form DPR 523A (Attachment A). Mr. Seavey is of the opinion that the Carmel Village 
Inn should be added to the City’s Historic Inventory. Staff disagrees with Mr. Seavey on this 
recommendation. 
 
The HRB is being asked to review the intensive survey and determine whether the Carmel 
Village Inn should be added to the Historic Inventory. If the property is added to the Historic 
Inventory, the HRB would also be asked to consider Design Review (DR 17-221) application and 

34



DR 17-221 (CVI Investors, LLC) 
October 16, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 3 of 7 
 
determined that the project is consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties.  
 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Review Process 
CMC Section 17.32.040 (Eligibility Criteria for the Carmel Inventory) states that the Director and 
the HRB, based on recommendations of qualified professionals, shall use certain criteria in 
making determinations of eligibility of properties for the City’s Historic Inventory. Below is a 
summary of the four eligibility criteria that must be met in order for the property to qualify as 
historically significant, followed by an analysis by staff: 
 
Criteria A.  Should be representative of at least one theme included in the Historic Context  
  Statement.  
 
Staff Analysis: In his analysis, Mr. Kent Seavy states that the Carmel Village Inn is consistent 
with the theme of Architectural Development (1888-1965). The Inn has been constructed on 
the site of Carmel’s first caravansary, Hotel Carmelo, which was constructed in 1888. The Inn is 
less than one block from several of Hugh W. Comstock’s earliest storybook cottages.  
 
The Carmel Village Inn was constructed to reflect Carmel’s architectural traditions during a time 
when modern-style buildings in the Bay Region sub-style were gaining popularity. The Inn 
employed a mix of Monterey style vernacular, with covered wooden balconies, and Tudor style 
detailing, with decorative half-timbering, and the use of Post-Adobe for the exterior wall 
cladding. Additionally, the building envelope was laid out in such a manner as to provide the 
widest possible view of Devendorf Park for visitors approaching the village on Ocean Avenue as 
well as guests of the Inn. 
 
Section 5.4 of the Historic Context Statement lists several types of architectural styles 
important to Carmel’s development such as Craftsman, European Revival, Minimalist 
Traditional and Bay Region. The Historic Context Statement references Hugh Comstock’s Tudor-
style fairy-tale cottages as a prominent type of architecture. The Context Statement notes that 
the Post-Adobe method of construction was developed by Hugh Comstock, but this style of 
architecture is not listed amongst those considered important in the City’s development.  This 
particular structure is a combination of Post-Adobe and includes a mix of other architectural 
styles such as Monterey Vernacular Tudor, making it a poor example of any one type of 
architecture.  In staff’s opinion, the architectural style of the Carmel Village Inn is not consistent 
with or representative of the themes identified in the Historic Context Statement.   
 
 
 
 

35



DR 17-221 (CVI Investors, LLC) 
October 16, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 4 of 7 
 
Criteria B.  Shall retain substantial integrity. 
 
Staff Analysis: The Carmel Village Inn remains substantially intact as originally constructed from 
1954-1957. The only exterior modification noted in the property file was a reroof in 1992. 
 
Criteria C. Should be a minimum of 50 years of age.  
 

1. Is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the broad 
patterns of local or regional history or the cultural heritage of California or the United 
States; 
 

2. Is associated with the lives of persons important to local, California or national history; 
 

3. Embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or method of 
construction, or represents the work of a master, an important creative individual, or 
possesses high artistic values; or 
 

4. Has yielded, or has the potential to yield, information important to the prehistory or 
history of the local area, California or the nation. 

 
Staff Analysis: The Carmel Village Inn was constructed from 1954-1957 and meets the 50 year 
age requirement. However, the Carmel Village Inn does not meet the requirements of 
subsections #1 and #4.  With regard to subsection #2, the Carmel Village Inn was designed and 
constructed by James Pruitt of Comstock Associates. Mr. Pruitt is listed in the Historic Context 
Statement as one of many architects who worked in Carmel during the post-war era; however, 
no additional information on Mr. Pruitt is provided and no mention of Comstock Associates is 
contained in the Historic Context Statement. With regard to subsection #3, in staff’s opinion, 
the structure does not represent the work of a master or possess high artistic value. The HRB 
should consider whether structure meets subsection #3. 
 
Criteria D.  To qualify for the Carmel Inventory, a historic resource eligible under California 

Register Criteria No. 3 (subsection (C)(3) of this section) only, should:  
 

1. Have been designed and/or constructed by an architect, designer/builder or 
contractor whose work has contributed to the unique sense of time and place 
recognized as significant in the Historic Context Statement; or 
 

2. Have been designed and/or constructed by a previously unrecognized architect, 
designer/builder or contractor if there is substantial, factual evidence that the 
architect, designer/builder or contractor contributed to one or more of the historic 
contexts of the City to an extent consistent with other architects, designer/builders or 
contractors identified within the Historic Context Statement; or 

36



DR 17-221 (CVI Investors, LLC) 
October 16, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 5 of 7 
 

 
3. Be a good example of an architectural style or type of construction recognized as 

significant in the Historic Context Statement; or 
  

4. Display a rare style or type for which special consideration should be given. Properties 
that display particularly rare architectural styles and vernacular/utilitarian types shall 
be given special consideration due to their particularly unusual qualities. Such rare 
examples, which contribute to diversity in the community, need not have been 
designed by known architects, designer/builders or contractors. Rather, rare styles and 
types that contribute to Carmel’s unique sense of time and place shall be deemed 
significant.  

 
Staff Analysis: Subsections #1 and #2 above require that the structure be designed by an 
architect whose work has contributed to the City. As previously noted, the Carmel Village Inn 
was designed and constructed by James Pruitt of Comstock Associates, who is listed in the 
Historic Context Statement with very little background information.  
 
Subsection #3 requires that the building be a good example of an architectural style or type of 
construction recognized as significant in the Historic Context Statement. As previously noted, 
the Carmel Village Inn employs a mix of Monterey-style vernacular and Tudor-style detailing 
with Post-Adobe for the exterior wall cladding. The Post-Adobe method of construction was 
developed by Hugh Comstock; however, he is primarily associated with the Tudor-style fairytale 
cottages. The Post-Adobe type of construction is not referenced in the Historic Context 
Statement as a style of architecture important to Carmel’s development.  Furthermore, this 
particular structure includes a mix of other styles. 
 
Subsection #4 states that special consideration should be given to properties which display a 
rare architectural style or type which contributes to the diversity of the community and/or 
Carmel’s unique sense of time and place. The Carmel Village Inn combines the use of Monterey-
style vernacular with Tudor-style detailing as a way to reflect the traditions of Carmel during 
the expansion of commercial development in the post-war era. In staff’s opinion, the Carmel 
Village Inn does not reflect a rare style or type for which special consideration should be given.  
 
Staff recommends that the Carmel Village Inn not be added to the City’s Historic Inventory. 
However, if the HRB chooses to add the Inn to the Historic Inventory, a determination of 
consistency with the Secretary’s standards would also be required for the proposed 
modifications to the structure. The City does have one Post-Adobe residence that is listed on 
the Historic Inventory. The DPR 523A Form for this residence is included as Attachment D. 
 
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards 
A Focused Phase II Historic Assessment was prepared by Historic Preservation Consultant, Mr. 
Kent Seavy to evaluate the proposed exterior modifications to the Carmel Village Inn 

37



DR 17-221 (CVI Investors, LLC) 
October 16, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 6 of 7 
 
(Attachment B). The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties identify four primary treatment approaches to historic buildings: Restoration, 
Preservation, Reconstruction and Rehabilitation. Mr. Seavy recommends Rehabilitation as the 
standard of treatment for the proposed project. Rehabilitation is defined as the act or process 
of making possible a compatible use for a property through repair, alterations and additions 
while preserving those portions or features which convey its historical, cultural or architectural 
values. The standards for rehabilitation are included as Attachment C. 
 
Character defining features of the Carmel Village Inn include, the irregular plan; one and two 
story height; post-adobe method of construction; Tudor-style hand detailing on the half-
timbering on the second floor; wood shake roof covering; and, multi-paned industrial steel 
fenestration. The proposed changes to the building exterior include, 
 

1) Construct a raised, 595 square foot patio along the south elevation of the hotel 
lobby/office and associated parking lot modifications to accommodate the patio;  

2) Modify existing balcony and stair railings to meet current Building Code requirements;  
3) Remove an existing, interior chimney from the south roof plane and replace it with a 

fiberglass replica;  
4) Repaint the entire building;  
5) Replace the roof with wood shake;  
6) Re-landscape the Ocean Avenue project frontage;  
7) Install a new railing along the 6th Avenue frontage; and,  
8) Other minor exterior modifications at Rooms 1 and 2. 

 
The proposed modifications would be carried out consistent with the Secretary’s Standards for 
Rehabilitation with the least possible loss of historic material so that the remaining character 
defining features of the resource would not be obscured, damaged or destroyed. The proposed 
alterations would be reversible and the new work would not cause a significant change to the 
building or an adverse effect on the environment. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires environmental review for alterations 
to historic resources that are not consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for 
the Treatment of Historic Properties. If the HRB determines that the property is not eligible for 
listing on the Carmel Inventory, the project would not need to be reviewed for consistency with 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. However, if the Board determines the property is 
eligible for listing, a determination of consistency is required.  
 
The proposed alterations were reviewed by the City’s Historic Preservation consultant, Mr. Kent 
Seavy, and a Phase II Historic Assessment was prepared analyzing the proposed changes based 
on the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards. The analysis concludes that the project, as shown 
on the project plans stamped received on October 4, 2017, would not cause a significant 

38



DR 17-221 (CVI Investors, LLC) 
October 16, 2017 
Staff Report  
Page 7 of 7 
 
change to the building and would not create a significant adverse effect on the environment. 
Therefore, the project is consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and no further 
environmental review is required. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Attachment A – DPR 523A Form (Carmel Village Inn) 
• Attachment B – Focused Phase II Historic Assessment 
• Attachment C – Standards of Rehabilitation 
• Attachment D – DPR 523A Form (Post-Adobe residence) 
• Attachment E – Project Plans 

 

39



40

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment A



41



42



43

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C



53

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment D



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63


	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	D.  APPEARANCES
	J.  ADJOURNMENT


	MA 17-213 (Markowski) - Packet.pdf
	Attach C  - Mills Act Contract.pdf
	RECITALS





